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To oversee the implementation
of all Government budgets
through the timely authori-
zation of with&alYals from
Public Funds and ensuring
prudent and efficient use of
public finances by monitor-
ing evaluating and reporting

following the law.
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lTl n" fY 2022123 Annurl report has been prepared in line with

I Article 254{ l) ol lhc Constitution which rcquires each Com.

I mission and each holtier of an independent omce to submit a

report to thc President and Parliament. The report has also bcen prc,

pared in conformity with Sections 8l(1,2,3,4) of the Public Finance

Management Act,20l2 and by the Public Sector Accounting Standards

(IPSAS) cash basis, which requires the Accounting Officer for a nation-

al government cntity to prcparc financial statcments in respect of thc

entity.

In addition to the audited tinnncial statements for the period ending

30'h fune 2023, the FY 2022123 Annual Report provides information
on the progress the office has nrade towards the implementation of its

mandate. f)uring the reporting period, the CoB approved the release ofKshs. 3.24 trillion from the Consolidat-
ed Fund to support budget implenrentation at the national and county governments. '[his comprised of Kshs.

2.85 trillion to the national government and Kshs. 399.60 billion to thc ,17 county governments. Other activities
undertaken during the period included; (i) publication and publicisation ofthe Budget Intplernentation Rcview

Reports (BIRRs) for the national and county govcrnnrents, (ii) Enfirrccment of approvcd budget ceilings, (iii)
sensitisation of thc public on budget implementation, and (iv) monitoring and evaluation of the implementa-
tion of approved projects at the county government level.

'lb strengtllcn our capacity to cflectively servc our clients, the COI) has acquired additional office space at the

National Bank of Kenya building, which is adjaccnt to the OCOB headquarters at Bima House. The added space

will enable thc office to onboard additional stafF kr support the dclivcry of the COB's mandate. To improve staff
productivity, the office has initiated the review ofthe current organisation structure, the development ofcareer

Progression guidelines, and a rcvierv ofthe grading structure and revision ofthe current human resource pol-
icies and proccdures manuals.

'lb promote access to information by the members of the public, the (lOIl has continucd to upload the quar-

terly and annual budget implerncntation review rcports on its ollicial website in line with Section 39(U) of the
PFM Act 2012. Mcmbers of the public are thereforc invited to regularly visit the COB wcbsite to access currcnl
information on budget implementation.

Finally, t wish to acknowledge the support the ollice has receivcd lrom the MDAs, County governments and

other agencies over the period and the members of thc public for promoting accountability in the use of public
tunds.

FCPA Dr Margaret N. Nyakangb, CBS

CONTROLLER OF BUDGET
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I. CHAPTER ONE

l.l. Introtluclion

|-f!he Office of the Controller of Budget (OCOB) is an independent omce established under Article 228 of

I the Constitution. The roles and functions of the Controller of Budget (COB) are further articulated in

I,n" Controller oIBudBet Act, 2016.

The core mandate of the COB is to oversee the implementation of the budgets of the national and county gov-

ernments by authorizing withdrawals from public funds, and preparing, publishing and publicising budget im-

plementation reports thirty days after the end of each quarter. ln addition, the COB will conduct investiSat ions

on its initiative or upon receipt of a complaint by the public; undertake negotiations, conciliation and media-

tion to resolve disputes involving budget implementation; monitor, evaluate and make recommendations to

both levels of government to improve budget implementation; enforcing budget ceilings set by Parliament and

providing information to the public on budget implementation at both levels ofgovernment. The COB is also

mandated to advise Parliament when the Cabinet Secretary responsible for finance stops the transfer of funds

to state organs or oth€r public entities.

In discharging the mandate mentioned above, Section 5 ofthe COB Act 2016 compels the Controller ofBudget

to ensure prudent and efficient utilisation of public funds. In addition, the COB seeks to, among other things;

promote fiscal discipline and equitable allocation of available resources whilst improving transparency and ac'

countability in the budget implementation process, which is significant for the devolved system ofgovernment.

Prudent financial management will ensure that the country fast-tracks the implementation of the flagship pro-

grammes and projects envisaged in Kenya! Vision 2030 and other international commitments.

I .2. 'lhe i\lantlate <>f '[hc (]ttntroller ol' I]trdqct

The COB oversees the implementation ofthe budgets ofthe national and county governments by authorizing

withdrawals from public funds as provided under Articles 204,206 and 207 ofCOK, 2010. The roles and func-

tions of the COB are stipulated in the Constitution of Kenya 2010, the PFM Act, 2012 and the Controller of

Budget Act,20l6, among other laws, as summarized below: -

l) Oversight Role

The oversight role involves overseeing the implementation of the budgets ofboth the national and

county governments. 'Ihe Controller of Budget performs in-year monitoring of public funds and

reports to Parliament on how the funds have been utilized.

2) Controlling Role

The control function involves authorizing withdrawals from public funds. Before authorising any

withdrawal from public funds, the Controller of Budget must be satisfied that the withdrawal is

permitted by law, as per Article 228 (5) of the Constitution.

Public funds include: -

Consolidated Fund: All funds raised or received by or on behalfof the National Government are

deposited into the Consolidated Fund. Article 206 (4) of the constitution states that money shall not be

withdrawn from the Consolidated Fund unless the Controller of Budget approves the withdrawal.
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County Revenue Fund (CRF): The CRF is the fund into which all money raised or received by or
on behalfofa County government, including money raised from property rates, entertainment taxes,

levies, fees, and charges, among others, is deposited (A rt icle 207 ( I )). Article 207 (3) ofthe Constitution

ofKenya states that the Controller ofBudget has the sole mandate and power to approve any withdrawal

from a Revenue Fund.

Equalization Fund (EF): Article 204(l)ofthe Constitution establishes the Equalization Fund. The

National Government uses the Fund to provide essential services, including water, roads, health

facilities and electricity, to the marginalized areas to bring the quality ofservices in those areas to the

same level as generally enjoyed by the rest of the nation.

Reporting on Budget Implementation

Article 228(6) provides that, every four months the Controller of Budget shall submit to each House of
Parliament a report on the implementation ofbudgets ofthe national and county governments. The

reporting role entails the preparation ofquarterly, annual and special reports to the Legislature and

Executive on budget implementation matters ofthe national and county governments. During the

period, the OCOB produced the following reports: Quarterly National and County Government Budget

lmplementation Review Reports (BIRRs) and annual reports to the President and Parliament with
Article 254 (l).

All the reports produced by the office are published and publicized in line with Article 254 (3) of the

Constitution, \a,hich states that "Every report required from a commission or holder ofan independent

office under this Article shall be published and publicized" for transparency. To promote access by

members ofthe public, the COB reports are uploaded on the COB website.

Advisories on Prudent Public Financial Management

The Constitution, Artrcle 225(7) mandates the Controller of Budget to give advisories to Parliament

on Iinancial matters where a Cabinet Secretary for Finance has stopped transferring funds to a State

organ or public entity. The suspension of funds cannot be lifted or sustained before the Controller of
Budget presents a report to Parliament. The COB is expected to investigate the matter leading to the

suspension of the transfer of funds to a state organ or public entity and, after that, prepare and present

a report on the subject to Parliament, which will then be used to approve or renew the decision to stop

the transfer offunds to a State organ or public entity.

The Controller of Budget also advises government entities on improving budget implementation and

promoting accountability in using public financial resources.

Investigation Role

Under Article 252( I )(a) of the Constitution, the COB has the power to conduct investigations on its
initiative or following a complaint made by a member of the public on budget implementation matters

Dispute Resolution on Budget Implementation Matters

Under Article 252( I ) (b) of the Constitution, the Controller of Budget has powers to initiate

conciliation, mediation and negotiation on matters touching on the use of public finances. The

Mediation role involves resolving conflicts between the national and the county governments or
between county governments concerning budget implementation. The part consists of conducting

alternative dispute resolution to resolve disputes relating to budget implementation.

6)
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Public Sensitization

The sensitization role involves the COB disseminating information to the public on budget

implementation at both levels ofgovernment, as provided for under Section 39(8) ofthe Public Finance

Management Act, 2012. This role is buttressed by Article 35 ofthe Constitution, which provides that the

public has the right to access any information held by the State.

The Constitution further sets out public participation as one of the principles guiding public financial

management under Article 201(a). The public can only be actively and effectively involved in the budget

process through the timely dissemination of information.

8) Enforcement of Budget Ceilings

The Controller ofBudget is mandated to ensure that all expenditure requisitions submitted by the

national and county governments are within the approved budget ceilings as approved by Parliament

and County Assemblies for national and county governments, respectively (COB Act, 2016, Sec.5 (d)).

e) Monitoring and Evaluation

Section 5(b) ofthe Controller ofBudget Act 2016 mandates the COB to ensure prudent and

efficient use ofpublic funds by undertaking monitoring and evaluation of programmes and projects at

the national and county governments. The CoB uses monitoring and evaluation reports to provide

information to the accounting officers on how to improve the imPlementation of programmes and

activities.
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l ) B.rckgrou Dd Infirrnralion

'[he C)Hicc ol thc Controllcr ol 13uclget (OCOI]) is an independent ollice establishcd under Article 228 ol thc

Constitution. 'lhe core mandate of the Controllcr of Budget (Coll) is to oversee the irrrple mentation of the bud

gets of both the National and Oounty governmcnts by authorising withdrawals fionr public funds. 'lhe rclcs

and functious ol the CoB arc flrthcr articulatcd in thc Controller ol tludget Act, 20 16, PIjM Act 20I 2 and the

attendant Regulations. The (lolt is lirther mandated to: prepare, publish and publicizc budget implcnrcntation

reports within thirty days aftcr the cnd ofeach quarter, conduct investigations on its initiative or upon rcceipt

ofa complaint by a membcr of tl'tc public, untlcrtake negotiations, conciliation and nrcdiation, and rcsolvc dis-

putes involving budget implcn)cntation.

l. i. Kcr Irrlrlrrrratiorr rrrrtl \llut:tgrrrrrrrt

b) Ker,\lanagemcnt

FCPA Dr Margaret Nyakangb, CBS

CONTROLLER OF BUDGET

Mr Masha is the Deputy Controller of the Iludget and heads

the Budget lmplementation Directorate. He has over 27

years of progressive experieDce gained in the private and

public sectors in Kenya. He holds a Master of Science (Fi-

nance) degree from the University of Leicester and a Bach-

elor of Education degree tiorn Kenyatta University.

Mr Masha is a Certified Public Accountant and a fellow

of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Ken

ya (ICPAK). He represents the Office of the Controller of
Budget in the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board
(PSASB).

Dr Nyakangb holds a l)octorate in llusiness Administration

frorn the University of Liverpool, UK (2016). She holds an

MBA in Strategic Manargement and a Bachelor of Commerce

(Accounting) degreesfrom the UniversityofNairobi. Sheisa Fellow

ofthe Certified Kenya Institute ofCertified Public Accountants.

Before she was appointed the Second Controller of Buclget, Dr.

Nyakangtr served as thc [)irector of Finance and Administration

at the Kenya National Bureau ofStatistics (KNBS). Dr Nyakangb

is also an active ntcmber of the Women on Boards Network,

the Association of Women Accountants of Kenya (AWA K), and

is a (lcrtified Mediator, Online trainer and Professional Coach.

FCPA Stephen Masha, EBS

Deputy Controller of Budget

t:

-
/
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CPA Macklin Ogolla

Director, Corporate Services

Mr Ogolla has over 32 years of professional expe-

rience in the public sector. Mr Ogolla has a Master

of Business Administration from Moi University

and a Bachelor of Science ( Mathematics) degree

from the University of Nairobi. In addition, he has

a Post-graduate Diploma in Finance from Maas-

tricht.

He is a member of the Institute of Certilied Public

Accountants of Kenya (ICPAK) and the lnstitute of
Certified Investment and Financial Analysts (lCI-

FA). Before joining the OCOB, he served at the Na-

tional Treasury of Kenya.

Ms Rhoda Rutto
Director, Legal Services

Ms Rutto holds a Master of Laws in Constitutional Law

and Human Rights from the University of Dar-e-sa-

laam (Tanzania), a Postgraduate Diploma in Law from

the Kenya School of Law and a Bachelor of Law from

Moi University. She has also earned professional cer-

tificates in Constitutional Law, Human Rights, Con-
flict Resolution, Leadership and Company Secretarial

duties. Ms Rutto is a member of the Law Societies of
Kenya and East Africa.

Before joining the OCOB, Ms Rutto served as the Dep-

uty Director of Legal Services at the Teachers Service

Commission.

r
Mr foshua Musyimi - Director, Planning,

Research and Knowledge Management

Mr Musyimi has over 28 years of professional

experience in the public sector. He holds a Mas-

ter of Arts degree in Economic Policy Manage-

ment from the University of Ghana, Legon and

a Bachelor ofScience in Statistics and Comput-

er Science from Kenyatta University. Mr Musy-

imi is a member of the Institute of Economic

Affairs (IEA). He left OCOB in lune 2023.

CPA loseph Tdula
Chief Manager Internal Audit

Mr Tulula has over 27 years of professional experi-

ence in Auditing, Finance, and Management in the

public sector. He has a Master of Arts (Economics)

and a Bachelor of Commerce (Accounting) degree

from the University of Nairobi.

Mr Tulula is also a Certified Public Accountant and

a member of the lnstitute of Certified Public Ac-

countants of Kenya (ICPAK) and the Institute of

Internal Auditors of Kenya (llA(K).

3



CPA Patrick Kamore
Chief Fiscal Analyst, National Government

Mr Kamore has over 19 years of professional expe-

rience in the private and public sectors. He holds a

Master of Business Administration (Finance) and

a Bachelor of Education Arts (Economics) degree

from the University of Nairobi.

Mr Kamore is also a Certified Public Accountant
and a member of the Institute of Certified Public

Accountants of Kenya (ICPAK).

Ms Irene Arlmi
Chief Managex Human Resource Management

Ms Arimi has over l9 years of professional experi-
ence in the private and public sectors. She has a Mas-

ter of Business Administration (MBA) degree from
Kenya Methodist University, a Bachelor's degree in
Human Resource Management from UNISA and a

Certificate in Executive Human Resource Manage-

ment from the Institute of Human Resource Man-
agement. Ms Irene is a member of the Institute of
Human Resource Management.

OFFTCE OF THE CONTROLTER OF BUOGET
Annu.r Repo,l ,rr(l I nrnci. Slrl.llronlr For tho yLrr en.le(l ]!lle l0 202l

CPA Mark Klpkoech
Chief Fiscal Analyst, County Governments

Mr Kipkoech has over 16 years of professional ex-
perience in the private and public sectors. He holds

a Master of Arts (Economics) degree from the Uni-
versity ofNairobi and a Bachelor of Arts (Econom-

ics) from Kenyatta Universiry

Mr Koech is a Certified Public Accountant and a

member of the Institute of Certified Public Accoun-
tants of Kenya (ICPAK) and the Institute of Certi-

fied Public Secretaries of Kenya (lCS(K).

Ms Judith Muli
Chief Manager, ICT

Ms Muli has over l7 years of professional experience in
ICT practice in the private and public sectors. She holds

a Master of Science (lnformation Systems) degree from
the University of Nairobi, a Master of Business Admin-
istration (Strategic Management) from Moi Universiry
and a Bachelor ofScience (Mathematics) from the Uni-
versity of Nairobi.

Judith is a member of the Computer Society of Kenya

(CSK), ISACA, and Internet Society of Kenya (ISOC) and a

Lister with Kenya ICT Action Network (KICIANeI).



OFFICE OF THE CONIROLLER OF BUDGET
4,.,,,,I rL l,)rl rr',j Irrrr,.i j:.rll'r,,,','1 , i) rr,'r"rr "'.rr'ar., l

Mr Stephen Wangaji, OGW
Chief Manager,

Public Relations & Communications

Mr Wanga.ii, OGW has over 30 years of professional

experience in journalism, public relations, and com-

munications. He holds a Master of Business Admin-

istration (Marketing) degree from Egerton Universi-

ty and a Bachelor of Arts (Geography & Economics)

from the University ofNairobi. In addition, he holds

a Post-graduate Diploma in Mass Communication

from the University of Nairobi. Wangaji is a fellow

ofthe Public Relations Society of Kenya.

CPA Pamela Okatch

Chief Manager, Finance and Accounts

Mrs Okatch has over 12 years of professional experi-

ence in the public sector. She has a Master of Business

Administration degree from the University of Nairobi

and a Bachelor of Commerce (Finance) from the Cath-

olic University of Eastern Africa.

Mrs Okatch is a Certified Public Accountant and a

member of the lnstitute of Certified Public Accoun-

tants of Kenya (ICPAK) and the Association of Women

Accountants of Kenya (AWAK).

Mr Boniface Ikumu Chimuani
Chief Manager, Supply Chain Management

Mr Chimuani has over 22 years of professional ex-

perience in the public sector. He holds a Master

of Science degree in Procurement and Logistics, a

Bachelor in Procurement and Supply Chain Man-

agement from the Jomo Kenyatta University of Ag-

riculture and Technology and a Bachelor of Laws

degree from Mount Kenya University.

He holds a Poslgraduate Diploma in Law, a Final Di-
ploma in Purchasing and Supply Management and a

Foundation Diploma in Purchasing and Supply Man-

agement. He is also a member of the Kenya Institute of
Supplies Management (KISM).

CPA Patric Ontita Kcbiro
Chief Fiscal Analyst Parliamentary Liaison

Mr Kebiro has over I I years of experience in the Fi-

nance and Accounting environment from both the

Public and Private Sectors. He holds a Master of Sci-

ence degree in Finance (Finance and lnvestment) from

the University of Nairobi, and a Bachelor of Commerce

(Accounting) from Egerton University. He is a Certi-

fied Public Accountant, a Professional Mediator, and

a member of the lnstitute of Certified Public Accoun-

tants of Kenya (ICPAK).

Before moving to his current role, he served as the

Manager of Finance and Accounts at the Office of the

Controller of Budget and as an Accountant at Simbisa

Brands Kenya.
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i)

ii)

iii) OCOB Bankers

Central Bank of Kenya

Haile Selassie Avenue

P.O. Box 60000

City Square 00200

Nairobi, Kenya

iv)

v)

OC0B Headquarters

Registered Office

l2'h Floor, BIMA House

P.O. Box 35616-00100

Harambee Avenue

Nairobi, Kenya

OCOB Contacts

Telephone: (2s4) (0) 203t8939, 22ll0s6

E-mail: CoB@CoB.so.ke

Website: www.CoB.ke

Independent Auditors

Auditor - General

Office of the Auditor General

Anniversary Towers, University Way

P.O. Box 30084

GPO 00100

Nairobi, Kenya

Principal Legal Adviser

The Attorney General

State Law Office

Harambee Avenue

P.O. Box 40112

City Square 00200

Nairobi, Kenya
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2. CHAPTER TWO

2.1. Institutional and Administrative Structure

The Office of the Controller of Budget (OCOB) is headed by the Controller of Budget (CoB). The CoB is re-

sponsible for the day-to-day management ofthe office. The COB is assisted by the Deputy Controller ofBudget

(DCOB), who is also the head of the Budget Implementation Directorate. The Office has the following Direc-

torates and one Division:

I . Directorate of Budget Implementation.

2. DirectorateofCorporateServices.

3. Directorate of Research and Planning.

4. Directorate of Legal Services and,

5. Division of Internal Audit.

Table l: Composition of OCOB Senior Management

(c) FiduciaryManagement

The key management personnel who held office during the financial year that ended June 30,2023, and who

had direct fiduciary responsibility were as shown in Table 2:

Conbollcr of Budgct FCP lrr M.tgrrct NFlrry:o, CBSI
FCPA Stephen M$ha, EBSDeputy Controller of Budget

CPA MrEtlin Ogolr3 Director, Corporatc Scrvices

Ms Rhoda Rutto4 Director, Legal Affairs

Dircctor, Plannin& Research & Knowlcdge Manage-
m€nt

Mr ro&u. MurytDi (RcrigBcd on 304 Jutrc 2023)5

CPA Joscph Ttrlula6 Chief Internal Auditor

CPA P.tdct K.morc7 Chid Fb€81 Ala\'srNstiord Gw*nmcnt
CPA CS Mark Kipkoech8 Chief Fiscal Analyst-County Government

Mr Stcphco W.trtrrl OGW9 Chicf Managcr, Publlc Rclations & Commudcation

Ms Ircne Arimil0 Chief Manager, Human Resource & Administration

Mr Judlth Mulill Chief ManageG lnformation Commudcation &
Technology

CPA P8mel. Okatchl2 Chief Manager Finance & Accounts

Chief Managcr Supply Chain Management Mr Boaifucc Itumul3
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I Controller ofBudget FCPA Dr Margaret Nyakangb, CBS

2 Deputy Controller of Budget FCPA Stcphen Masha, EBS

3 Director Corporate Services CPA Macklin Ogolla

4 Director Legal Affairs Ms Rho& Rutto

5 Director of Planning, Research and Knowledge
Management

Mr foshua Musyimi (R€signed on 306 rune 2023)

6 Chief Manager, Human Resource & Administration Ms Irenc Arimi
7 ChiefManager Finance & Accounts CPA Pam€la Okatch

8 Chicf Manager Supply Chain Menegement Mr Boniface Ikumu
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Table 2: Management with Fiduciary Responsibilities

(d) FiduciaryOversightArrangements

The COB has established administrative structures to entrench good governance practices. Further, the OCOB

has created several committees to aid fiduciary oversight.

a) Executive Committee

The Executive Committee (EXCOM) has the mandate to oversee the overall performance and delivery ofthe of-

fice. The Executive Committee comprises the Controller ofBudget, Deputy Controller ofBudget, Directors and

any such members as may be co-opted into the Committee on a need basis. It focuses on strategic leadership,

management and direction, ensuring the most effective prioritization of resources. Further, the Committee
sPearheads the developing and implementing policies and the OCOB Strategic Plan. The Executive Committee

is responsible for the following:

(i) Oversee the Office ofthe Controller of Budget's overall performance by focusing on strategic leader-

ship, management and directionr

Ensure effective and efficient service delivery and prioritization of resources;

Spearhead the development and implementation ofpolicies and the OCOB Strategic Plan;

Develop and monitor the performance ofthe OCOB Strategic Plan;

Approve and monitor the implementation of OCOB policies and procedures;

Approve OCOB's organisation structure;

Oversee risk management in the organisationi

Provide direction on succession planning; and

Promote stakeholders' engagements as provided in the OCOB Strategic Plan.

The composition of the Executive Committee is shown in Table 3

Table 3: Composition of Executive Committee

(ii)
( iii)
(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)
(viii)
(ix)

I Controller ofBudget FCPA Dr M.rg.ret Ny.t ndo, CBS Chairperson
.,

Deputy Controller of Budget FCPA Stephen Masha, EBS Member
3 Directot Corporate Services CPA Macklin Ogolla Member

4 Dilector, Legal Services Ms Rhoda Rutto Member

5 Director Planning, Research &
Knowledge Manrgement

Mr Ioshua Muryimi Member (Resigned on 30d fune
2023)
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b) The Management Committee

The Management Committee comprises the Controller of Budget, Deputy Controller of Budget, Directors and

Heads of Departmcnts. The Committee makes recommendations and approves policies on significant decisions

that impact the olice operations. The other roles and functions of the Management Committee include:

(i) Establish and review the OCOB strategic and operational plans through policy and decision-n, aking

Processes.

(ii) Develop policies and procedures that guide the operations of the OCOB and record decisions and

actions on matters concerning the oltrce.

(iii) Ensure that members of staff properly perform their tasks according to their job descriptions and

further ensure that the COB mandate is executed correctly;

( iv) Confirm that the OCOB establishes sound governance structures and complies with the laws of Kenya

in the discharge of its mandate;

(v) Ensure that all linances are properly managed, annual financial records are audited, and that the prin-

ciples ofpublic finance management articulated under Article 201 oIthe Constitution are adhered to.

In discharging their duties, members of the committees are guided by the organisation's policies and proce-

dures, the Strategic Plan and other legislation.

Table 4: Composition of Management Committee

c) Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee is appointed by the Controller of Budget according to Gazette Notice No. 2690

of April 15, 2016. The Committee is responsible for monitoring and reviewing the integrity of the financial

statements and supporting the COB by observing and reviewing the risk, control and governance Processes

established in the OCOB. The ob.jectives are met by introducing an independent perspective and a process

of constructive challenge, not to undermine the management's actions but to help the management be fully

assured that the most cost-effective control and governance processes are in place. The governance processes

enhance the performance of the OCOB.

s/No. DESIGNATION NATTE Porltloa
Controller of Budget FCPA Dr Margaret Nyakangb,

CBS

Chairperson

2 Deputy Controller of Budget FCPA Stephen Masha, EBS Deputy Chairperson

3 Director, Corporate Services CPA FA Macklin Ogolla Member

4 Director, Legal Affairs Ms Rhodr Rutto Member

5 Director, Planning, Research & Knowledge
Management

Mr foshua Musyimi Member (Resigned on f0th
June 2023)

6 Chief Internal Auditor CPA ,os€ph Tulul. Member

7 Chief Fiscal Analyst-National Governnrent CPA Patrick Kamore Member

8 Chief Fiscal Analyst-County Government CPA Mark Kipkoech Member

9 Chief Manager, Public Relations & Commu
nication

Mr Stephen wangaii, OGW Member

l0 Chief Manager, Human Resource & Admin-
istration

Ms Irene Arimi Member

lt Chief Manager, Informatt)n Communica
tion & ltchnology

Ms fudith Muli, CISA Member

t2 ChiefManager Finance & Accounts CPA Pamela Okatch Member

l3 Chief Manager Supply Chain Management Mr Boniface Ikumu Member

l4 Chief Fiscal Analyst- Parliamentary Liason Mr. Patric Kebiro Member
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The Committee's role is to ensure continuous improvement and adherence to the organization's policies, proce-

dures and best practices at all levels.

The specific functions of the Committee arei

i. Support the COB concerning the responsibilities of risk management, internal control, governance

and associated assurance;

ii. Follow up on the implementation ofthe recommendations ofinternal and external auditors;

iii. Ensure that the OCOB adopts, maintains and applies appropriate accounting and financial reporting

processes and procedures;

iv Facilitate the independence of the internal audit process and address issues arising from the audit

process; and

Y Ensure that the OCOB maintains effective risk management and internal control systems.

During the Enancial year, the committee membership was as follows;

Table 5: Composition of Audit and Risk Committee

The Committee held meetings, and the attendance at the meetings is as shown in Table 6

Table 6: List of meetings held by the Audit and Risk Committee

d) BudgetlmplementationCommittee

The Committee ensures the resources are utilised per the OCOB budgetary allocation and work plan. The pri-
mary responsibility of the budget implementation committee is to assist the COB in discharging her duty in the

following areas:

(i) Oversee the OCOB budget implementation and regularly advise the Accounting Officer on the per-

formance of the budgeh

(ii) Review and consider the cash flow plan;

(iii) Review the authorization of cash limits and consider any change as may be required;

(iv) Review the utilization of development partner funds in the OCOB vote;

(v) Advise the Accounting Officer on any challenges relating to budget implementation;

(vi) Review and recommend the allocation of expenditures; and

(vii) Review and approve the submission of the quarterly performance reports, the expenditure returns,

IPPD, and pending bills and recommend action to be taken.

CPA foseph Surli Ndinyo Chairperson

2 CPA Mrrgrrct }{ulndc Mcmbcr

3 CPA Joel SimiFr Walucho Member

4 CPA funa Mbdrc Mrlar Mcnbcr
5 CPA David Mwrngi Gichimu Member

6 CPA Joccph lthle Sccrd.ry

CPA foseph Sudi Ndinyo

2. CPA Msrgarct Muindc

3 CPA loel Simiyr Walucho

4 CPA Agncs Mbajm Maina

5 CPA David Mwangi Cichimu

6 CPA loseph Tirlulr
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Some ofthe achievements included; (i) preparation ofthe OCOB Programme Based Budget, (iii) preparation

of the sub-sector report and Programme Performance Review Reports, (iv) Preparation of the Annual budget

Estimates and participating in the Sector working grouPs.

Table 7: Composition of Budget Implementation Committee

The Committee held meetings and the attendance of the meetings is as shown in Table 8;

Table 8r Attendance Schedule for the Budget Implementation Committee

No. NarDa
Mccthg Dd.r

3r-a- m22 olr.ur.mrl 15.o9.2022 ot,to.?n:n t0,10.202:t

I CPA Macklin Ogolla

2 Mr. ,oshua Musyimi

3 Ms. Iudith Muli

4 Ms. Irene Arimi

5 CPA Pamela Okatch

6 Mr. Boniface lkumu

7 Mr. George Tuti

8 CPA Dr Denis Okungu

9 CPA Dr Charles Njoroge

l0 Mr. Geoffrey Mokua

CPA Antonette Kanani

t2 CPA Thomas Cheboi

e) Human Resources Management Advisory Committee (HRMAC)

The Human Resource Management Advisory Committee (HRMAC) committee is responsible for advising the

Controller of Budget on all human resource management issues.

The functions of the Committee entail the following:-

(i) ldentifu, analyse and recommend available training opportunities to the Controller of Budget on the

suitable candidates (based on identified training needs) for various traininB programs organized lo-

cally and internationally;

s/No. NAME DESIGNATION
I CPA Macklin Ogolla Chairp€rson

2 Mr foshue Muryimi Vlc. Ch.irpcroor (Rcsiglcd on 30d ,unc 2023)

3 Ms Judith Muli Member

4 Mr lrcnc Arirni Mcmber

Dr De[is Okuntu Member

6 Mr Bonlf.cc lkumu Membcr

CPA Patric Kebiro Member

8 CPA Cheboi Thomas Mcmber

9 CPA Antonette Kanani Member

l0 CPA Pamcla Oketch S€cretary
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(ii) Investigate and make recommendations to the Controller of Budget on disciplinary matters;

(iii) Discuss and make recommendations on existing HR policies to the Controller of Budget;

(iv) Discuss and make recommendations to the Controller of Budget on general staffwelfare and motiva-

tion issues, among others;

(v) Promotion ofValues and Principles ofPublic Service; and

Table 9: Composition of Human Resource Management Advisory Committee

f) Mortgages and Car Loans Committee

The functions of the Committee entail the following

(i) Receive and process applications for loans by the existing terms and conditions ofborrowing;
(ii) epprove criteria for the beneficiaries ofthe scheme;

(iii) Cause to keep proper books and records ofaccounts ofthe income, expenditure, assets and liabilities

ofthe scheme;

(iv) Forward the successful applications with recommendations to the Controller of Budget for approval

before forwarding them to relevant financial institutions; and

(v) Prepare and verifr financial statements for auditing.

g) Pension Scheme Committee

The Trustees shall ensure that audited accounts ofthe scheme are submitted according to the format issued by

the Retirement Benefits Authority. The functions of the Committee will entail the following:-

(i) Administer the Scheme under provisions ofthe Retirement Benefits Act, 1997 Trust Deed and

Scheme Rules;

(ii) Update the Founder (Sponsor) every quarter in any financial year on all matters regarding the

Scheme;

(iii) Ensure that contributions based on the correct pensionable emoluments have been remitted to the

Approved Issuer as provided for in the Retirement Benefits Act, 1997 and the Scheme Rules; and

(iv) Keep records ofaccounts in respect ofincome, expenditure, liabilities and assets ofthe Scheme

Fund.

I CPA Macklin Ogolla Chairperson
') Mr. foshua Musyimi Member (Resigned on 30'h June 202J)

3 Ms. Rhoda Rutto Member

4 CPA Mark Kipkoech Member

5 CPA Parick Ka$ore Membcr

6 Ms. ,udith Muli Member

7 Mr. Stephen WanBaii Member

8 CPA Pamela Okatch Member

9 Boniface lkumu Member

l0 CPA Patrick Kebiro Member

ll Mt Waweru Ttrtl Member

t2 Mr. Geoffrey Abuga Member

l3 Ms. Irene Arimi Secretary
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h) Integrity/CorruptionPreventionCommittee

The functions of the Committee entail the following:-

(i) Coordinate formulation and implementation of integrity initiatives;

(ii) Setup priorities for the prevention ofcorruption in functional areas;

(iii) flan and coordinate corruption prevention strategies;

(iv) Mainstream integrity in the institutional programs and activities;

(v) Spearhead anti-corruption public campaigns within their areasi

(vi) Monitor the impact ofcorruption prevention initiatives; and

(vii) Strengthen internal control systems.

i) InformationCommunicationsTechnology(ICT)Committee

The functions of the Committee entail the following:

(i) Align ICT strategies with the broader OCOB strategic objectives;

(ii) Ensure ICT compliance with the law, Public Financial Management (PFM) practice standards and

constitut ional expectationsi

(iii) Monitor and manage stakeholder expectations concerning ICTs;

(iv) Ensure that ICT systems are in place to support stafflearning and development; and

(v) Monitor and manage material risks to which the Controller ofBudget is exposed.

j) Records Management Committee

The functions of the Committee entail the following:

(i) Develop and implement the records management policies, procedures, systems, retention and dis-

posal schedules;

(ii) Implement a fully integrated records management system with transparent processes and guidelines

by the relevant legislations and acceptable standards;

(iii) Ensure that all OCOB records are maintained according to acceptable standards in a secure and

sustainable environment;

(iv) Develop and implement Records Disaster Management Procedures Manual for all OCOB records;

and

(v) Develop and implement a Records Disaster Management PIan.
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3. CHAPTI,R THREE

3. l. Re vicrv of F\' 2021/2-l Perlirrrnirnce

The OCOB has one programme: Control and Management of Public Finances, and four sub-programmes

namely; Authorization of Withdrawals from Public Funds, Budget Review and Analysis, Administration Sup-

port Services, and Research & Planning. The main objective ofthe OCOB is to promote prudent financial man-

agement by authorizing withdrawals from Public Funds and reporting on budget implementation for national

and county governments. Each sub-programme has specific objectives to ensure the overall attainment of the

COB mandate. This chapter reviews the achievements and challenges realised during FY 202212023.

Objective l: To ensure timely approvals ofrvithdrawals from public funds
Under Article 228 (4) ofthe Constitution, the Controller ofBudget is mandated to oversee the implementation

of the budgets of the national and county governments by authorising withdrawals from public funds under

Articles 204 (Equalisation Fund),206 (Consolidated Fund) and 207 (County Revenue Funds). The CoB also

aPProves the withdrawal of funds from the ludiciary Fund (Article 173). Article 228(5) provides that the Con-

troller of Budget shall not approve any withdrawal from a public fund unless satisfied that the withdrawal is

authorised by law. Critical achievements for each output area are discussed below.

a) 'l'imely processing of Exchequcr Requisitions

To ensure the timely approval ofexchequer requisitions, the CoB developed Exchequer Requisition Guidelines

to provide the required documentation when requisitioning withdrawal of funds. The guidelines contain the

requirements to ensure the standardization of the exchequer process and assist all stakeholders in understand-

ing the needs for exchequer approval.

ln FY 2022123, the CoB approved Khs.3.24 trillion from the Consolidated Fund. This comprised Kshs.308.03

billion for development, Kshs.l.22 trillion for recurrent, Kshs.l.3l trillion for Consolidated Fund Services and

Kshs.399.6 billion for County Governments.

During the period, the CoB approved requests for withdrawals from the Equalization Fund worth Kshs.670.35

million.

To improve efficiency and timeliness in the processing of the withdrawal of public funds, the CoB in consulta-

tion with the National Treasury and the Central Bank, are working to automate the exchequer requisition and

approval process. During the FY 2022l23, the three institutions completed the process ofdeveloping exchequer

automation and are preparing to conduct user acceptance tests of transactions from end to end in a live envi-

ronment.

During the user analysis and design, the COB reviewed the proposed Exchequer Automation System and pre-

pared comprehensive research and reconrmendations on improving the system while safeguarding and up-

holding the office's mandate and independence. The recommendations have been incorporated into the system.

b) Timely Processing of Withdrawals for Consolidated Fund Services

The CoB ensured timely processing of withdrawals for the Consolidated Fund Services by providing timely
review processing and approval or declining requests for withdrawals from the Consolidated Fund Services

Account. The COB processed an average of 100 Pensions and Gratuities 6les per week for FY 2022123.
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c) Operationalization of the ,udiciary Fund

The fudiciary Fund 0F) r/as operationalized in FY 2022123. The )F is established by Article 173(l) to be ad-

ministered by the ChiefRegistrar ofthe Judiciary. The Fund is used to defray the administrative expenses ofthe

Judiciary, the acquisition and proper maintenance of buildings, grounds and other assets of the fudiciary and

other purposes provided for in the Constitution and other written laws.

To operationalize the JF, the )udiciary, the Central Bank of Kenya, the National Treasury and Economic Plan-

ning, and the Controller of Budget formed a joint task force to develop a framework for the operationalization

of the Fund. The framework developed recommended a two-level process for the flow of funds. The process

involved approval for the withdrawal of funds from the Consolidated Fund to the JF and from the JF to the

respective JF Operational Accounts. The CoB developed guidelines for the required documentation when req-

uisitioning for the approval for withdrawal of funds.

During the year, 105 requisitions for withdrawing funds from the Judiciary Fund were submitted to the CoB,

ofwhich 89 were processed and approved for withdrawal of Kshs. 20.24 billion, usually granted within one day.

Some sixteen ( l6) requisitions were declined for various reasons, such as non-adherence to SRC Circulars and

non-adherence to the fudiciary Fund Exchequer Guidelines requirements.

Table 8 provides a summary of the sub-programmes, strategic objectives and targets, outcome indicators and

actual performance recorded during lhe FY 202212023.

Table l0: Analysis of Programme Targets and Achievements

Timely processing
ofExchequer

Requisitions

No. ofdays taken
to review, process
and approvc/decline
requests for with-
drawal of funds

I There will be improved efficien-
cy in thc exchequer approial
process once Exchequer automa-
tion by NT is completed.

SPl.t Autho-
rization of
withdrawals
from public
firnds

To eosule timcly
approvals of
withdrawals from
public funds

t2 AII requests submined by TNT
were reviewed, processed and
approved

No. of requests
for withdrawal of
funds, revicwed
and processed per
week (Consolidated
Fund)

No. of rcquests
for withdrawal of
funds, reviewed and
processed per week
(Judiciary Fund)

3 |udiciary Fund was created in
F\ 2022123.

No- of requests
for withdraw'al of
funds, reviewed and
processed per week
(annual) Equaliza-
tion Fund)

7

t37No. of requcsts
for withdrawal of
funds, reviewed and
processed per week
(County Revenue
Fund)
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No. of monthly
exchequer reports
prepared and dis-
seminated to Senate,
County Executive
and Counq, As-
sembly

564

No. ofbills and leg-
islatioN reviewed to
ensule compliance
with the PFM Act
and the Corlstitu-
tion (National and
County Goi,t)

163

No. ofdays take[ on
avemge to review
legislations, Bills
and advisories to
ensure compliance
with the Consti-
tution and PFM
Act (National .nd
County Govem-
ment)

5

No. of complaints
on budget imple-
m€[tation handled
(national and coun-
ty govemment) and
advisories issued

5 Some complaints related to
pcnding Bills, f.ilurc to rcmit
stetutor), deductions, lack of
public participation ir the bud-
get process, diversion offunds
aDd s.lary deductions by coun-
tics, misappropriation of funds
and abuse of officc by somc of
the Counties, r.cruitrnent of
staff rrithout budgcts, the legality
of implementing budgets, stalled
and unimplcmented proiects.

No. ofcases relating
to budget imple-
mentation where
CoB was listed as

either a petitioner
respondent or an
interested party

t7 The disputes involved budget
implementation between th€
county executive and the assem-
blies.

No. of guidelines
and checklist for
the appror.al of
exchequer requests
developed (CF, EF,

IR CRF)

3

Timely processing
of withdrawals for
the Consolidated
Fund Services

No. ofdap taken
to review the f,les
relating to public
debt

5

No. ofpublic
debt requisitions
reyiewed, paocessed,

approved/declined
per week

t00

No. ofdap taken to
review pensions and
gratuities 6lcs

4
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No. ofpensions and
gratuities iles pro-
cess€d for quality
assurance per week

r00

8

(4 for NC
and 4 CGs)

Twenty-three thousand four
hundred rcports were produced/
printed, comprisinS 10,500

repons for the NG and 12,900

for county Sovernmcnts.

To ensure the pro-
vision of quality
advice on budgct-
ing and budget
implementation

Timely reponing
on the Budget
implementation
process

No. ofNational and
County Gov.!n-
ment Budget lrnple-
mentation leview
reports produced

188

Capacity challenges erperienced
in the publication and publiciza-
tion of reports,

No. of County
Specific budSet im-
plementatioa review
reports produced

No. of popular ver-
sions ofbudget im-
plementation review
report produced.

8 OCOB developcd the popular
versions but could not be publi-
ciz.d due to budg.t constrailtts.

29 The OCOB preparcd special
reports to Parliament during the
FY 2022123 penod.

Review of plan-
ning and budget
documents

No. of special re-
ports prepared and
submincd

No. of training
undertaken on
building capacity on
budget implemen-
tation

5

No. of Planning
Documents for Na-
tional governrnent
reviewed (Debt
Management Strat-
egy Paper, BROP
and BPS

3 There is, however, a challenge in
receMng the planning docu-
ments on time due to a lack of
supporting lcSislation.

4 The OCOB reviewed all the bud-

8et documents in FY 2022123.
No. ofBudget
Documents for the
National govern-
ment (Draft Budget
Estimates, the
Approved BudSet
and Supplementary
Budgets) reviewed.

215

Therc was, however, a challenge
in receiving the planning doc-
uments on time due to a lack of
supporting legislation.

Enhanced report-
ing on Budget
Implementation

No. of Planning
Documents for
County govemment

(cIDP, CBROB
ADB CFSP and
County Debt Man-
agement StBtcgy
Paper) rcviewed.

All submitted Draft Budgets,
Approved Budgets and Supple-
mentary Budgets were reviewed.
Counties had, on average, two
supplementary budgets each.

No. ofBudget Doc-
uments for County
government

(Draft Budget,
Agproved Budgets,
Supplementary
Budgets) reYiewed.

188

0730020 sP r.2
Budgct Review
and Analysis



OFFICE OF THE CONTROTLER OF EUDGET
Annurl Report ilnd trnancr.r Stalemenls For the year efded lune l0 2021

No. of training
undertaken on
building capacity on
budget implemen-
tation

Staff performing budget reviews
trained on Programme Based
Budgeting at Kenfa School of
Government.

Public sensitiza-
tion forums on
budget implemen-
tation are held

No. ofpublic partic-
ipation forums and
media engagements

8 There were media engag€ments
and comments by theCOB on
budget implementatioD issues
and regular coverage ofOCOB
activities in the print and elcc-
tronic media each quarter on the
publication ofBIRRr.

To enhance opera-
tional efficiency

Emcient service
delivery

Number of Human
Resources trained.

59 Due to inadequate fuDding

Perccntage (96) of
staff establishment
achieved (staff es-

tablishment of253)

57 Due to inadequate fundiog,
th€rc were I 36 stafr are em-
ployed against a target of253.

Customer satisfac-
tion survevs

A customer satisfaction and
public perception survey was
urdertaken in 2021. The overall
satisfaction index was 77%
among the staf and 88% among
other stakeholders.

Data Capture and
ReportinS System in
Place.

100%

Centrd Data Managcment
Retrieval System (CDMRS) for
access counties, MDAS and pub-
lic portal access. Developmcnt
partners funded it.

Percentage of
ageing ICT assets
and infr'astrucfurc
maintained.

8096 Inadequate ICT funding has hin-
dered the complcte maintenalce
of ICT lnfraslructure and assets-

sP.l.3 Ad-
ministration
and Support
Services

OCOB data centrc
(redundarcy and
business continuity
site). Pcrcentage (%)

completion

Ta.rg€t not met due to inadc-
quate ICT funding hindering
the acquisitiolr ofa Critical Data
Centre hardware and software

To Enhancc Good
Governance

Research on
budgct implemen-
tation

No. of Survels and
Research Reports
completcd

2 Budg€t credibility reports were
done.

Research on
budget implemen-
tation

No. of Annual
reports produced to
the Executive end
Parliament under
Article 254 (l) of
the Constitution-

Three hundred copies ofthe
annual repon wcre produced.

sP.l.4
Research &
Planning

Monitoring and
Ei.aluation of
proiects

No. of M&E activ-
ities u[dertaken at
the National and
Cou[ty Govern-
ments

30 Desk review of programmes
and sub-programmes for the 47
county governrDents dorc.
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Objective 2: To ensure the provision ofquality advice on budgeting and budget implementation

The ob.jective is to provide advice on prudent financial management in the public service and enhance report-

ing on budget implementation. It ensures the public is sensitized to the budgeting process. The critical outputs

in this area included; (i) preparation and publication ofthe National and County Governments' Budget Imple-

mentation Review Reports (BIRRS), (ii) management ofexchequer records, (iii) compliance with the public 6-

nancial management framework, (iv) sensitization ofthe public on the budget implementation and (v) tracking

and monitoring the implementation of budgets.

Other achievements include the preparation of summary reports with critical issues in the BIRRs to national

and county governments including a continuous review and provision of recommendations on planning and

budgeting documents such as the budget review and outlook papers (BROPs), county Budget Review and Out-

look papers (CBROP), Budget Policy Papers (BPS), and County Fiscal Strategy Papers (CFSP). The office has

also undertaken capacity building for its staff on complaints handling and alternative dispute resolution. The

specific achievements during the period under review are highlighted below:

a) Engagemcnt with l)evelopment Partners

During the FY 2022123, the COB collaborated with UNICEF, the World Bank, and the UNCDF through the

Public Finance Management Reforms (PFMR) to support capacity building on public finance management and

promote accountability at both levels of Government. The partnerships were in the following areas:

. The GESDek program under the Public Finance Management Reforms (PFMR) Secretariat partnered

with the Controller of Budget to fund consultations and training of County Executive and County As-

sembly staffon cash management including the exchequer approval process by the Controller of Budget

that was held in November 2022 in Mombasa.

. UNCDF trained staff of the Office of the Controller of Budget on the Tax Administrative Diagnostic

Assessment Tool (TADAT) Methodology and supported assessments for l1 County governments during

the reporting period.

b) EngagemenlwithParlianrcntarians

The COB continues to engage with Parliament on the oversight ofbudget implementation and accountability of

both the National and County governments. During Fy 2022123, the COB established a Parliamentary Liaison

Oftce to engage with and support Parliament closely.

No. ofM&E repons
produced for county
governments

30 The remaining 17 counties
will be covered during the FY
2023124

2 We developed and signed MOUs
with 2 partners and stakeholders
to implement the COB mandate.

Pannerships and
collaborations

No. of collabora-
tions and partner-
ships established

Online subscrip-
tions to joumals
and magazine

No. ofonline sub-
scriptions

24 We subscribed to twcnty (20)

intemational online databases

that provide jourmls, e-books
and other rcference mate.ials.
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The CoB submitted the quarterly BIRRS to Parliament and shared monthly County government exchequer

release reports with the respective Senators to enhance their oversight role. Specifically, the office engaged with
the following National Assembly Committees;

i. Standing Committee on Public Debt & Privatization.

ii. Standing Committee on Budget & Appropriation.

iii. Departmental Committee on Finance and National Planning.

iv. Public Petitions Committee.

v. National Assembly Committee on Delegated Legislation

vi. Departmental Committee on Labour.

vii. Six Watchdog Committees (Public Accounts Committee; Public Investment Committee on Social

Services, Administration and Agriculture; Public Investment Committee on Commercial Affairs and

Energy; Decentralized Fund Committee; Specialized Accounts Fund Committee; Public lnvestment

Committee on Governance and Education.

In addition, the office engaged with the following Senate Committees: Devolution and Intergovernmental Re-

lations, Finance and Budget, County Public lnvestment and Special Funds, Senate Standing Committee on

Health, Oltrce of the Deputy Speaker, Senate, and County Public Investments Committee.

The olfice provided information to the Senate during the following functions:

i. The impeachment proceedings for the Governor of Kirinyaga County.

ii. The impasse between the County Executive and County Assembly of Kitui.

iii. The Budget Implementation issues touching on Bungoma County in lune/fuly 202I.

iv. A report on the National Government's release and utilisation of COVID-19 pandemic funds.

v. A report to the Senate Finance and Budget Committee on the County Government'.s Wage Bill for
Public Officers.

vi. A report on the status ofpending bills to the Senate Finance and Budget Committee.

Objective 3: To enhance public access to government budget implementation reports

The COB has ensured that the public can access understandable, credible, and timely information on budget

imPlementation. Some achievements include undertaking a customer satisfaction survey to get feedback from
stakeholders on OCOB services, developing a Customer Service Charter, and media engagement through ro-
bust media relations initiatives and planned meetings.

Objective 4: 'fo enhance operational elficiency

The objective seeks to achieve efficient service delivery by enhancing the capacity of the COB to deliver on the

constitutional mandate. To improve service delivery to the members of the public and stakeholders, the office

has developed the OCOB service charter. The charter is available at allOCOB offices countrl.wide and provides

information on the services offered by the office with corresponding delivery times. The signilicant achieve-

ments under this ob.jective are presented below:

l) Human Resource Development and Capacit)' Building

.r. .l'ra 
in ing ol Stati

The COB acknowledges the importance ofstafftraining and development, an exercise to develop all-round skill
sets. The olfice sponsored staff to relevant training to improve productivity and elficiency. The CoB launched

capacity-building Programs and facilitated officers to attend professional development courses, seminars and
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workshops. These training interventions are aligned with the organisation's performance management systems.

However, the office did not achieve the targets set for the period due to inadequate funding.

b) Oornpliancc rr ith thc Valucs & I)rinciyrlcs ol Public Serr tcc

The office is required to comply with the values and principles in Articles l0 and 232 of the Constitution as

guided by the PSC. The OCOB recorded a l5.l percentage increase in the performance index score from 44.10

per cent recorded in FY 202112022 to 59.20 per cent in FY 202212023 in its compliance with the PSC values

and principles.

c) l)cvcloprrrcrrt and Nlanagcrncrrt of thc StirlI Estirl)lishnrent

To ensure optimum staffing levels, the oltrce has designed a phased approach to address the ever-increasing

workload. The COB recruited 30 staff to fill vacant positions within the establishment during the period. This

comprised six staffat the management level,23 at technical level and one at the support level. The staffrecruit-

ment was informed by the skills set analysis provided by the Heads of Department after a comprehensive skills

gap review.

ln recognition ofthe exemplary performance recorded by the office over the years, the CoB and the DCoB were

awarded State Commendations of CBS and EBS honours respectively.

d) Stall iU()rtgage l)acilitics

The OCOB has continued to provide mortgages to its staff to promote the Government's plan of access to af-

fordable housing under the Bottom-Up Economic Transformation Agenda (BETA) on accessible and adequate

housing at reduced interest rates. So far, twenty-three (23) staff members have accessed the facility, and other

applications are at various stages ofapproval.

r) I n lirrnrati(rn ( l()mrrr u r) icirtion .\'lcchnologv

The office has embraced technology in the delivery of services and is moving towards acquiring modern ICT

and infrastructure equipment. During the year, the office replaced parts and materials (array software) for the

existing data storage appliance and procured a seryer, a data storage appliance and a network switch to improve

data centre operations. The office also acquired six (6) laptop computers for staff. The office looks forward to

additional support to effectively deliver on its mandate.

l) I:irranciall{cporting

The OCOB received unqualified opinions from the Auditor-General on its Annual Reports and Financial State-

ments in the FY 2022l23. Further, the OCOB was recognised as the first-runners up in the IPSAS cash-basis of

reporting under the Commissions and Independent Offices category in the Financial Reporting (FiRE) Award

competition in FY2022t23.The ofrce also received commendation letters from the National Treasury and Eco-

nomic Planning for excellent performance in 6nancial management reporting.

g) Srrpplr'(iltairtIIaIritgcrrcnt

The COB prepared a consolidated Annual Procurement Plan and submitted it to the Public Procurement Reg-

ulatory Authority (PPRA) within the stipulated timeline; prepared the required periodic statutory rePorts to
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the PPRA and NT&EP; prepared tender documents for goods/services/works and followed up tender process-

ing for the contract signing. Some of the significant tenders included the tender for the provision of Medical,

Group Life, Accident/WIBA Insurance Covers and printing of BIRRs, Annual Reports, Financial Statements

and OCOB Strate gic Plan 2023-2027. Further, the COB facilitated Access to Government Procurement Oppor-

tunities (AGPO) for reserved groups at 30 per cent for FY 2022123 as shown below.

Figure l: Access to Government Procurement Opportunities in OCOB

o/o Procurement Accessed

35o/o

3tr/o

250/0

2Wo

lSYo

Itr/o

5%
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3tr/.

l60/o t5,700/o

20mn02l 202tn022
r o/o Procrremart accessod

2022J2023

h) I nternal Audit

The office reviewed the adequacy of its internal control systems, risk management framework and existing
governance processes. It also reviewed Public Debt and Pensions and Gratuities payments to comply with the

law before the Controller ofthe Budget approves the withdrawal offunds. The COB established an Audit and

fusk Committee, which aligns with section 155 of the PFM Act, 2Ol2 and with the National Treasury Guide-
lines issued in 2016.

Risk-based audits on OCOB functions were undertaken, and reports were issued to the Audit and Risk Com-
mittee. Follow-up action was taken to ensure that all audit recommendations have been implemented.

Objective 5: To attract and retain productive and motivated human resource

The office has reviewed its organizational structure to attract, retain, and motivate its staff. Further, the office

has continued to train its staffin critical work areas to improve service delivery. Further, the OCOB staff mort-
gage scheme has ensured team members can access loans for houses oftheir choice.

Objective 6: To strengthen the Legal and Regulatory Framework

The COB has continued to undertake legal audits to ensure compliance with the law and has reviewed all agree-

ments to ensure compliance with the law. However, the COB has yet to develop a structured framework for
engagement with stakeholders in law enforcement, i.e. EACC, DCI, and DPP. Some of the achievements under
this objective included:
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a. D€velopment of the Controller of Budget Draft Regulations, 2021

According to Article 228 of the Constitution and the provisions of Section 25 of the Controller of Budget Act,

2016, the Controller of Budget, in consultation with the Kenya Law Reform Commission and the Office ofthe

Attorney General, developed the Draft Controller ofBudget Regulations. A comprehensive public participation

exercise was undertaken. After that, the draft Controller of Budget Regulations 2021 was published vide Kenya

Gazette Supplement No.226 (Legislative Supplement No. l0l Legal Notice No. 254) dated 3rd December 2021.

The National Assembly Committee on Delegated Legislation acceded to the published Regulations, having

satisfied the legal requirements of the Constitution, the Statutory Instruments Act, the Interpretation and the

General Provisions Act and the Controller ofBudget Act. However, in June 2022, the Senate adopted a Sessional

Committee on Delegated Legislation Report that annulled the Regulations. These events have forced the office

to repeat the process that will lead to developing the Regulations for the COB Act 2016.

b. Issuing of Advisories on Legal Compliance

To ensure the olfice effectively delivered on its mandate, it undertook research on topical issues and rendered

advisories to various entities on several issues that included irregular recruitment, appointment and Promotion

in the County Public Service Board; appointment ofAccounting Officers and Receivers ofRevenue; implemen-

tation of the Members of the County Assembly Car Reimbursement benefit; implementation of the County

Governments Additional Allocations Act; funds flow process to the fudiciary Fund and documents required to

support a request to withdraw funds from the Fund; automation of the Exchequer Process; budgetary ceilings,

compliance with court decisions, vote on account, and implementation of decrees of the Court as well as the

impact of various court orders.

Objective 7: To Enhance Organizational Image and Visibility

The COB has continued to publish a periodic OCOB newsletter which provides information on the activities

undertaken by the office. The office has also developed a communication policy to guide its interaction and

communication with external stakeholders. It has also engaged in public outreach programmes, including en-

gagement with the public through digital communication platforms.

Other achievements include Regular coverage of COB activities in the print and electronic media; regular con'

tent for website updates; daily media monitoring and reporting; development of a Customer Service Charter;

undertaking a Customer Satisfaction Survey, and producing and distributing Public Education Information

materials.

()bjective ti: To [inhance Good (iovernance

The office has developed an Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) framework, continuously reviewed the inter-

nal control systems, conducted capacity building of staff members on auditing, constantly monitored and im-

plemented work plans, and prepared status reports. The key activities of this sub-programme include research

activities on budget implementation issues and undertaking monitoring and evaluation of the projects under

implementation at both the national and county government levels.

The specific achievements during the period under review are highlighted below
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The Controller of Budget is required under Section 5(b) of the Controller of Budget Act 2016 to ensure the pru-

dent and efficient use ofpublic funds by, among other functions, monitoring, evaluating, reporting, and making

recommendations to the National and County Governments on measures to improve budget implementation.

The COB undertook monitoring and evaluation of projects across 30 counties. The M&E exercises aimed to

determine if public funds are used prudently and efficiently in implementing planned activities. During the

monitoring and evaluation exercises, the olfice made several observations on the progress made on budget

implementation at the counties. Some of the observations made included:

a) Discrepancies between the budget implementation reports and the approved Programme-Based Bud-

gets (PBB).

b) Spending offunds outside the budget appropriation structure

c) Non-compliance with various government circulars, such as the circular on budget ceilings on the

construction of non-core County infrastructure.

d) failure to establish Emergency Funds as per Section I l0 (l) of the Public Finance Management Act,

2012 and non-adherence to Regulation 49 ofthe Public Finance Management (County Governments)

Regulations, 2015, on the procedure for making advances from the Emergency Fund and reporting

on the utilisation.

e) Use of commercial bank accounts to operate Public Funds contrary to Regulation 82 (t)(b) ofthe
PFM (County Governments) Regulation, 2015, which requires that County government bank ac-

counts be opened and maintained at the Central Bank of Kenya.

The Controller of Budget also assessed the compliance with budget ceilings on the construction of non-core

County infrastructure. Some ofthe proiects that were monitored during the monitoring and evaluation includ-

ed:

| ) ( otttPletiort ol tlrc Corrslrrrction \1'cst l)okot (iovcrrror's Ilesitlcncc

The Controller ofBudget monitored the construction ofthe West Pokot Governort residence which had stalled

since FY 2016/17. The current administration undertook to complete most of the County's stalled projects

amongst them the Governort residence. As of the monitoring period, the construction works were at 70 per

cent completion and the budget was within the infrastructural ceiling issued by the Salaries and Remuneration

Commission.
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The County Assembly is currently constructing the olficial residence for the Speaker of the County Assembly

on approximately I acre ofpublic land. The contract sum fbr the project is Kshs.34.6 million, and Kshs.l7.l5

million (50% of the contract sum) has been paid to date. The proiect is estimated to be 75% complete, and the

contract period has lapsed.

..r{ff,11r#ieflSt

l iturc:: ('on\lrll(lil,n oI lhlr \\r\l I'lllol (;r)rrrrtor'\ lk\id!rrrr

l iirrl( l: ()ng,rirrg rrtlr\lru(tiorr .rl'h('rithr, ( orrrrlr \I|jxltr''\ llr'\i(lrIl.('

l) SlJlus ()l the (:r)n\tructiorr ol Kilili (lorrrrlr .\sscrttblr (lltattttrcrr

-l) \t.rlu\ r)l thc ()llici.rl Rcrirlcrrrc lirr tltc (iorertror ol Kcricho (.otttttr

The County government has not constructed a new house for the Governor but has designated the house ofthe

former'lbwn Clerk as the official residence for the Governor.

The County Assembly started constructing the chambers in 2016 for a contract sum of Kshs. 600.2 million.

However, the contract was terminated in August 2017, and a new one was awarded in 2018 for Kshs.408.65

million. The project is estimated to be 70 per cent complete.
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4. CHAPTER FOUR

{. l. Challenges in I}rrdget Ilnplenre ntatit)n :rnd Recotlr llrcndat ions

Dur\ng FY2022123, the COB faced several challenges that impacted the budget implementation process. This

section highlights some of the challenges faced and proposes some of the ways for resolving the identified

challenges.

a) Inadequtte Funding lirr i\lonitoring arrrl llraluation o[ I]udgt:t I !nplrnrcutat ion

The office was allocated Kshs. l3 million in FY 2022123, the fnnds allocated were inadequate to undertake M&E

for both levels of government. During this period, the office only managed to undertake M&E on-budget im-

plementation in 30 counties in FY 2022123.

The office also faced a capacity challenge in terms ofthe number ofstaffrequired to undertake a comprehensive

M&E exercise on all facets of budget implementation.

Proposed recommendations;

Section 5(b) ofthe COB Act 2016 provides that the COB shall ensure prudent and efficient use ofpublic funds

by monitoring, evaluating, reporting, and making recommendations to both levels ofgovernment on measures

to improve budget implementation. The sector should allocate the COB adequate funds to comprehensively un-

dertake M&E on all facets ofbudget implementation for both levels ofgovernment. The sector should also allo'

cate sumcient funds to the office to recruit and attain optimal staffing levels in Iine with the staff establishment.

b) I)clays in tlre I)isburscntent of thc l'ixchequcrs

The implementation of the COB's planned activities was affected by the late receipt of the exchequers from

the National Treasury. In many instances, the olice received exchequers towards the end of the financial year

(quarter 4), thereby affecting the implementation of planned activities such as monitoring and evaluation.

Proposed reconrnrendations:

To ensure the timely implementation of planned activities, the National Treasury should endeavour to release

the exchequers timeously per the annual cash-flow plan for the COB to undertake its planned activities.

c) l cch nokrgical (ilrallcngcs

The COB's ICT infrastructure, hardware, software, and networking technology require some refreshing regard'

ing new acquisitions and upgrades. With the planned move to automate the exchequer process and the devel-

opment of a data collection system for reporting on budget implementation, there is an urgent need to acquire

new data centre infrastructure, new ICT user equipment and software applications for existing and new staffto

ensure eflicient service delivery. Further, COB does not have an offsite data recovery site for the backup of its

critical systems and data and, therefore, intends to acquire and set up a disaster recovery site that will restore

and recover data in the event ofa disaster.

Proposcd recommcndations:

The sector should provide adequate funding for the COB to progressively acquire new user ICT equipment

and modern data centre infrastructure and implement a central data management and repository system that

will automate the collection ofbudget implementation data. Additionally, the COB plans to acquire one disas-

ter recovery site that will be used to recover and restore its technology infrastructure and operations when its

primary site becomes unavailable.
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d) I nadequatc Stafli n6

Although the COB has an approved staff establishment of253, the current in-post is 145 staf, with the remain-

ing positions outstanding due to budget constraints. ln FY 2021122, the Auditor-General audited staffing levels

and established that the office was grossly understaffed. Recruiting additional staff to attain optimal levels to

discharge the COB mandate is critical.

Recommendation:

The COB has developed a Career Progression Plan for the office. The sector should provide adequate resources

to implement the new optimal stafrng structure once the documents are approved.

c) Inatlcquatc Iludget to Iorplcnrcnt Plannetl Actir ities

The operations ofthe office have been negatively affected by inadequate budgetary allocation to support the

imPlementation ofthe OCOB Strategic PIan, for example, lack ofadequate staff establishment necessary to

imPlement planned activities, inability to carry out monitoring and evaluation of budget implementation

at the national government level, failure to conduct public sensitisation forums across the country among

others.

Proposed recommendations:

To effectively implement planned activities, the sector should provide additional funding to the office to enable

it to deliver on its constitutional mandate.

l ) Inadcquatc lruntling to undertake I)ublic Sensitisation

Section 39(8) of the PFM Act mandates the Controller of Budget to provide information on budget im-
plementation for both levels of government to the public. The office has been relying on donor funds from

the Public Finance Management Reforms program to undertake this activity. However, the donor program

supporting the activity of public sensitisation lapsed in FY 2020121. Consequently, the office was unable

to undertake public sensitisation activities in FY 2022123, which negatively impacted the discharge of its
mandate.

Proposed recommendations:

The sector should allocate adequate funds to enable the office to undertake activities geared towards public

sensitisation to discharge the mandate under Section 39(8) ofthe PFM Act.
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5. CHAPTER F'IVE

5. l. Statenrent of Ilanagenretrt llcsponsibilities

Section 8l (l) ofthe Public Finance Management Act,2012 requires that, at the end ofeach financial year, the

Accounting Officer for a National Government Entity shall prepare financial statements for that entity. Section

8l (3) requires the financial statements so prepared to be in a form that complies with relevant accounting stan-

dards as prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board of Kenya from time to time.

The Controller ofBudget is responsible for preparing and presenting the entity's financial statements, which give

a true and fair view of the entity's state of affairs for and as of the financial year ending on )une 30, 2023. This

responsibility includes:

a) Maintaining adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be

effective throughout the reporting period;

b) maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the

financial position of the entity;

c) designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair

presentation of the financial statements and ensuring that they are free from material misstatements,

whether due to error or fraud;

d) Safeguarding the assets ofthe entity;

e) selection and application ofappropriate accounting policies, and

f) making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Controller of Budget accepts responsibility for the entityi financial statements, prepared on the Cash

Basis Method of Financial Reporting, using appropriate accounting policies under International Public Sector

Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The Accounting Olficer believes that the entity's linancial statements give a true

and fair view of the state of the entity! transactions during the financial year that ended June 30, 2023, and of

the entity's 6nancial position as of that date. The Controller of Budget further confirms the completeness of the

accounting records maintained for the entity, which have been relied upon in the preparation of the entity's

financial statements, as well as the adequacy ofthe systems of internal financial control.

The Controller of Budget confirms that the entity has complied with applicable Government Regulations and the

terms ofexternal financing covenants (where applicable) and that the entity's funds received during the year under

audit were used for the eligible purposes intended and were adequately accounted for. Further, the Accounting

Officer conlirms that the entity's financial statements have been prepared in a form that comPlies with relevant

accounting standards prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board of Kenya.

Approval of the financial statements

The Controller of Budget approved and signed the financial statements on September 6,2023.

FCPA Dr Margaret N. Nyakangb, CBS

ICPAK Member: 2145

CONTROLLER OF BUDGET
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Pttfc Fhrp lfrgancnl ld, 20t2 rrd h. Cotr* d atOea A4 2046

!.hft.Ophbr
fDrerdf rlrodtd h mdrprtr Enrlond &rrdrrlr o, Stryr.Ardf
ln.|o| (BUl) I rn htpar&il., !r. Ofica d nro Coili o, aded
ffrTllf h EdiD d! BSAI tSdlcod.dEtr*r I lrr lf.rdrdracj
.aoraa.. h strp dft t E8 l rd h Etro f,i .ft.. *foJ
rqi,Un{rlCcltobp.rSrllw rdfr dirrdl tusrrh Karyr. I b.br.
tfio i| rfrrn I lm offlrd b rllfGa rn Slr,fr b Fof,a. U fo.
mVenorl

Etfrbo,fbr
P.lfqfcca:r?.h
ib n.2 b h lhrrf rEltl.li ttcb gidng @rr! p.yaL td.tle
]Illaa.33+2Be r r !O .lm. zdl:I fll taic. rda.. b p.alfe Df lrt rr.r ,U
pU Arhg nr frr tnfu ,rlliru ht rr hta.d cmicl, lrrrd b tb fuid.l r.r
frtst?,,e,.

F-rt b ..D b- drne h Ir E fdt D.t ,tbb .dtin l, Jt q. n
lum.qact0rfrosttq'.f y.t tutg.t dFoeril. -horffirg blbkllt
r lHil.e btrr p-. hrdg.rFrrb0.
faygharn- ndrpfrrt h rl;.ctd0b mier.
lorArathrl
K., lda lnrt m llu. ,n :r tltl. tt ,tl, p.oa..E d Jde.n rt. n o, md
tErfrrEi h fE ul ol fr inrril rttmmb. Tlrt. m m by rff rtrr to
,tgo.f h ta trf l,llabr rayid.

REFORT Ol{ IIn;UUC3S AIO EffECIfvETCSS il t SE ff pu8trc
RESOT.IG8

cdldrSi
Ar rt$id ry Ar&l A?$l d trc Conft,lqr br.d m ir aufl p,mdur..
F,b|ttr.d, I co.tr.ti irf. rdtrg ti all b nt, iHion tr can- .lr b bdLr htpe rarer rrro rd brn Said bfia, rnd h rr olcdir rry.

(b.ft6.' dAdr|ri' tt. t< .'r&y'-|rlfi. .Yrj,hrd4t lffiaryt/ a (rf<t el t<
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BrbbrComhtloo

Tha adl ral cdrduct d in t6r(1anoe hifi ISSAI aoq) flE a lrrd lequ rea thlt I

cfitgty rth dti, rtqriurt rlt ttd 9hr nd prbm [tc r.dt to obtan ttt{rttcc
&rl rhctl:r lhc idyE ,indraal lran!.donc eti r{crndon t.ftcEd h he
ftglcal rlrErurtr I! h corpllncc. n d ruttid rith th f,Jutonlic. th.t
epvam [rm I Dal6,t hI lta ]Jdr 6rUdp I h&a obtr,tad o lslhc,.rr rtid lprelr&
b,oviro a llta ffr my co.drrFn.

REPORT Oil EFFECTIVETCSS Of FITERT{AI CONTROLS NISX IIA}IAGEMEiIT
AXo oo1/ERxAtacE

Coocfdon

tr1 ,lqrald by So€too 7(txtl of tho ArU. Adl A.t. 2015, D...d on Ul .udl
proodt f, parfo.md. I ootfn lrd, mthng haa qta b try tolo.i b ctjr m b
bahra nd rrltilcqrrob,,br nrfragl'rull lrat oirlfal gollrnano rrt.d lrLclha

BrbbiGqElrlolt
Tlr .uC r.a co.rducLd . rc.o.dr.. rin BSIAI 23t5 fl.t lSSAl 2330. IIE irrdI(i
lrqdl 0ri I pl:r .td p.dfit ttr rrdl to otil.ir rlw.nor rbod rhdhor olHve
pocaoraa ard t *na ol ihnd cdtd. d( rna[em{tl atd oErI gpYornarE/i ectr
opr.tne .{lrdtdr. h ril m&irl r.p.dr I b*y! ttd h. .t fl sriroooo I ltrr,!
obaanad a rrncril ard aegmgflli b p6rac r b.la br rny conduro.r.

Ropootillirr ol Imrernma rod lhaa Ch.rt d w[t Ootrtnaltca

ItJbn gin d . ,rrfo.trilrl h iln prprn*m rd frh purntdon d hac fnrmid
tttEncnb h Eadrc rlt lnffiimrl Pubk Scclor Accqrlt{ $mderdr (C$tt
Brb) and hr rn*tllnp afrctvc hEnal cflitot E Urnrginif drEr*E I
n6.Jy b ar$b tro glprrton oa llnrad atthitGrlt lhal ara rraa lrqn m*rrt
rrffi0rnt xfidrar dua b ftlud or crmr rd ftr !b raEanrrflt of tha t(hcliffo
ol nlc,ru carrlob. rll rnanaecnE tl al! oYoral eorrrnsno.

h proptrE ttf, ftt Eial igtmgt. Uan{aDnt it ttPstaibb ,or -t trang lrr
Cxlhr'..ba.ty tocoo0.ub rll.rrln tr r.rvE!a, d.eone. il tPg.Ettrb. mrrrr rllE
to rrfrir.blty of lr rmtrr..d rriT lhc ryIc-b bra d rcorting u5o
llhoagramrt r ere o{ !r rtnEr to &dah ,r Ofico or b orio op.ftrrort!

Ithrrgarcrf tr abo r69olri5b ls Ga !l!rnrt|d| oa hG fnlllcd lelErm b rr
A.dib.6onrc n rcdd.no rrlh Ut Drwtirrl! d S.ctbn 17 ol hG RSt Audf Act
20't5

ln dtirn b btra rrtgo,rbilty ltr tha ,r?a,a0ofi arr, p.lnaraon c, !! inrtioJ
.LEn.ntr (5cr5.d .boa, lhn gm.{r . ato r.aedrl.a h enruhg tha t:
.ctiviti.r. fu.ncid f.rlteint ard irfrrn lion rrlbcbd h thc finmcid rl.Fncnb rc
n dngt]r 5lh fic airlho.dc. rich goE n lhar, and lhal F bfc lEro.rtoa! r,a
epp$ed in n efrearve ray

ttgn ,,1tlr. ,l*t attl'ar)l d lt..n t t,b ( !rt.rr.t arrtrt.r,t-r ,lll' 
'.ur 

orlV J0.lot' .itljj
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ldontay rrd !ae$ rhc ,d(l ol mataral mLtrts ncnt d lht tftrnqr gaEn€ol3
whelror (hx b lraud or Brro., (bl{n 8nd p€ftrm rt.dil p.ocst B tEaponsaue b
rhoaa ,blr, ard obt-i rrdit rvdlr fic b rrfik,|.nl ard m.PrLb b 9rqvi..
boll h my opnon Th. ml d ]lol (l5c[E a ,nlt|.l rr!.ttlrlrnt r..ullrE ttun
frrud b tigtrr thlr lor onc nling iun sts, r ird rly inlotvc colr.obn.
forgcry, nhrlird d?!rbnr. mirtcprticnldhnr, ot lhc ovcttda o,lntsnrl conltolr

Etrauil thr epproerrfr.. d eccuilng polir ur- a.n lhr '..tsrthtcr o(
acca,ttrle adnaaas md ,rLrd (iell.s fnd b, lha tlr,l{aflInl

Co,r.lr. dr lh. +groefli.m.. d ttE l.rrTrln fifr u- o, fE t9Plc.Oh b!r. ol
rmrtlirg and. btrd on tr.dl ovid..r dtdrcd, whotts e m.t'ti.l uro.Einry
aratr lra.t- b.{!tb a ctrdlio.rs trat m.y d.toricanl doal m tlr Oflrcr'r
rbary b conux.s b ll,rllr lr t.nria , I cfldud. thl . mr.nd t,lc.nanty adlt..
I .m Eqtfud b dr.r.l5ndon h lhr rudb.'t t?st b tht t!*d dircb.trrt h tho
,namd JaEncrltd. !.rdr dbu6 al! nadqurb, lo,ttodry,tty op.ion ltay

oond.ir[ r! br.d m $! rda ayirro obalrf,d lp b t d.a ot my audl
.apo.l Horier, t tll! cr!.tb o. @ndhofts mry carc tl! Olll6 b coaaa b co.t nr
to auatlh l! rJlior.

a

a Eydutb t! oylrj porrtrlin. rtucfurc md cfi5nt oa t! hancC tl,tltrtotl.
ndu*re $G &dqr.6 rrd rllailra, lhc tlrtod tta5tlct{t /tDJtaE lra
uar&rtt'rog trmr.ct.m Jld ar.r ! n a rrrrllar thi rdthf,! br reutUlm
Obtrh rs{lorrf TFop.O rud.vi,.rr rtgrtdiE fir furiod itrfrrmaEt ttn
hrimo rciarltbr ol tro Oftcc b crgtrr rt ofiilon ot lho tnltdrl rtrtcrrlcnb

a

o ffinn rrdr ofic, FEadur.. ! lcotda ncccsry h ll! dor?rltaara

lcqrtflurE r with l,! t{-.grr.,n ,tgr0q. rnoq du t'rrlE.t. lha Crnd roga
rfd ltn.T ot l|I lJ.l n6 r.gdEarr .ida nrtrrea, rncluthe ao, den.ltctr daioacL.
h hrnrl cantol thn f! ilrnmrd drlng tho rdt
I t|o prorro lbn.grne{t r,fi ! sBbnrari rtet I 1!1i drpled rm rebvE I dh|cal
,aqrirmnts qard.g trdaprrdair a.i b crnmmic- rtrt lhan { taalidEltlF
rnd oah.r maLrr fir mry nrenrbly b. lErrgtn b b., tr my indrpadoncr lnd
wttcrc saaaDc. rchEd 3dogutdr

, c83
ArrorroR€ctaAL

X.holl

S lilr.rr, t02a

lrFrl .1 tr -l.lr,r 1;rd. sl ..i arili. ,\' ,r. ( i.irdr.r .\r ar.rltlr ,t t ,rL' r.r' rnlr,l Jn 'ht lri!
t
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II.ST^TI}IEYT OF N[C[I?TS AND PAYMINTS TOI TIIT Yf,,^N TilDID
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Ib OCoB d6 ru lryc A-l-A h.rtc dE re(rr n cdy anta;r iur drt{ fu Fi {

(r) Th chqo bcnctn drc cr3hd butd md tlr n d bdpi of Xla ttllll rcn u
r nadt ol rrvrrr h lh Drril.d cmohnrcnr O! b d*, in 0r rcmihca poocro

retfcn d hd6t crrt Oritx 6c pnlod udc Bdc*.

lbl Ttr driftr '&rriliritn of ccmic cbdforin o Arqtdnin of Ar*B (,8
h.lf) i $ F.G.ra r&e.ar.odhrt of h$ .lldd or th FdE of oaTkt

frrtirrt d 1:lsd cpipu. Tt$ rl r ladt of dry h dr &liuy of |no& d
rrrkcr



OFFICE OF ]HE CONTROLI-ER OF BUDGET

10. \I tTtlltllT Or ('l)lrP,rUso\ Ot Bt'DCtT rND A('1t I l. dll( )l l\I\: R[( l RRl.lVf X,R ] I lnllAl

e..a Flt nb

rU,urf,r)

r-r'l
.laJat.t l1

d

t{r}rclar

tn.ll l.dl.

tataaaar

t.rrg*,rrr,r of rrry'lntti

I q ,,1lrd.:nrl rvrrrr

\r[tl1(uflt\ \r|h

\;t..r,rttn .,r lr.ci. nrl..

linl'(!l

,{i{Jrrtrun \{ lrlatl I ,nrrsd

fdtl F.rrrr
\riC.r llf,.il

.a!Jra.ir It,talxJ

lm 0'o(tn

Iti I '9 .'

'r.rjI ri0

It4_ l:l

t.i I (r(r.ll((r,

t.: rr.rll{l

rrl j-t IIt)

ll..l r 9 'l'
In:l t.o
rql'ttl

lr'.1'l: tnl

' .t:: t6e

) 9ri i-
1n. t tt.i 'n

lI'.rl')
(.lie.:'{

9t..

or,i
l(lrl(.1lAi .

t'r ::l 6;

tGr txr (lI) trt, l0t.ltlr

rr:..ar,ll) .l0It. t
l').i01 [i

a*J:rt0
&[Lrr

IIr.ml

r.rlj-tar
lLtt_ilrr

m4

ralJ'a.m



OFFTCE OF THE CONTROLLER OF BUOGET
Annual Reporl and F nancLal Slillemenls For the year erded -lune 30 2021

Ilr OCl$ dcr m herc AJ-A lxrrc rhr rcceiplr er otly crdrcqtrr is:r drnni thc nrrl.

(c) Thc ch.rq6 b.tren tr or[,inrl hdgct rrd thc lirul hu*a ol 15. &[EAl *ut u

r rtrJt ol !.rrnF rn ltr pcnuucl coolunartr d.t !o &lD in tlr rocruitmt ptocas

uo&t*co md hdlrr cut drrllu tlE pmod uda rti*
l0 Tlt dgrrficrl r:a&rnlidton ol cemnrnr clasficdim m Acrpiriot ol Atrcr (nc

nr-id) r ltt Frtr.! radc<rpcadtun of hnsrr dlocrod m dro Frdusc of otlcc

nnirrt nd Fcrd c$litrrri. Tlir rrc r nrdt of dcby rn thc &tvcr) of rrrds ld
SaECt

IlE firrirl *ecnglr rcrt Fnrc{ m ScFrob.t 6. 2O2J ttd tiFd b,
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I?.STATEIIE.ITT OI COil?A$IOII OT BUDGET AT{I' ACTUAL AiI(IJIITS:
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t9. slcNlncAm Acc0tlrfi ING rul.lclFs

Ilx pinripl rulotiq plicio rdopttd in thc prJurairn of droc lituncid sutcmclr m

rcl rul bclrtr

Shtcrx.t of Corplirrs md Bd of Prrrrrdo

Ih l'inrrcid xrrnrcnrr hrw horn prcpud h roortrt *ifi Crh-h.rir lntrrnatoorl Ptiltc

li.ctor Actulntin3 StnMl (IPSAS) s frtxnhd b1 th Prilic Sc(tur Ac(ornlini Stndrdr

Borrd (PSASll) nd st rut u ht uouliE plic) noc bclo*. Thir cdr bub ul rruunting

hu bttn upplonmted *i0r rcuntirg fir; r) rrtnrrrbls iut inlu& impll nd dq'
dvnco oad bl pryrblcl firt imtudc dcprir rnd rlllnliottr

Ttr fuuirl lulonotB cqnph rrth utd qnlom m U: frrn of prcrnuir! FEsafEd h'-

tr PSASB flr rcumtirj plicta drryul lutr trtl ctrubtcatl.r rpplid to dl iltc.r-crr

Fc!fltlod

frponftrrily

llr linmcnl {dcnElts rn lrr ilrc ()llicr ol'tlx (irntnilkr rrf tlulgrt. TLc finrcial

rlatctncolr cncoopos th rpthj cnlrtl u qrrcrlicd unlcr nsrtin i I of 0rc PlrM Act 301 l
rnd rho cornprirc of thc follo*rry doclr?rncn prlut ioplcrnmted I thc rrthy: Dunng

th lEril undrr rn'irr, tE ([oll rlid nf hnr Orc[pmuu rrtr lnrsc nc did nrt

inplcmcnt q pmicsts.

Rrptl3Crrrry

Ilr tuuncirl tt ttmtrilr uc prncrtrd in Kroya Stillirryr (K*rr). rhrct is thr l'rnctrrnl urd

tqoniq curmc)' of thc Go'cnmcn ud lll ulurs ut undcd lo lhr ncrtrt Xurr

Shillitrg

I

I
I
I
I
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SNlSort Accomdq Polckr

'thc rctrnting plicics er rct orr in this scctirn tuw hccn rJplicd cnnrirtartly hy thc { ['oll

frr all thc 1'can prclcild

r) Golr3Crcn tdrclf

lh flmid rrdccnntr rt pcplrd on acurpm iltJ tlr (foB il r going cmcm md ulll

coilintr in opmtim rnd moct ili lhtuory oUiSlrom lor fu fscrccohlc frirc,

l) Irrgidor ol lcttilttt

'tlr tX'otl rrogrir:r dl raciptr lirrn thc ulrrrur nurer rhcn thc ctcrl rtcsn ld thc nLrrl

csb bu b<cn rtcitod b' tr crltt)'. l.}rilx dr pcri{ utd.t m'icr'. dtc officc ncdpr

conpirul ol crr'lralu rlu*r ud1.

l. Tnr&rfirctlcErr}qrlr

Irsufcn fim ilrc cxcicqua uc rcogfrc{ in trc bools of rcomr wtrn c{sh ir tacircd.

('ntr ir rrn irkrtd ac .Ecircd *lrrr plmcnt irutnrdrn is issrd b tk Brl* ld nuifrcd

ur tht rfixtrrq trm). lhrin8 thc pcrhd urds m[q. hc ot'frcc rcccircd srcbc$ts{

ntllcrtrnr mrurring to lblr. lr$fJ{.|0

[. f,rrtrlArhrc

l..rrtul urigrncc is ntdrnd thru,4h 3nnr frrm r dclelopmcnr ;nnncr. tlriq thc prl{
undcr rnh, (X'oD rucirtd lirmialniirrnr: t'nn Pf MR trr unhrde ir uanirp of urrul

Iorcflu&lr ollicrdr m & cr,l;krlrrr trucctl rod nry9urt thc grchuc ol'ss1n rnl rorac

hlirrmrrun.

lhc actnrl $$sl.rle nr't diru'r Julmfilr \ tlr rlnrn haut st lxl tsc(f,dcd iil hc

linlxirl rhlcnxrb
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l)rntq thc lear gr&!d Juns J(1. !(ll}. drerc rcrc no tosurnccs of nm<ornplirrc nith tcrmr

.rnd c<nditirnr ntrrll crulrl hnc rrulrd in tlr crntlhion of cxtcmrl r"rsbtanrc

(irnslrunr

tL ()ltrr f.c.lpo

fhac furlude Apptopid*irAid utd rlrtc m rccigtr strh er proccrdr fun llr dirpnrl

of astr ad glr of tordo drumsh 'ltnc 
crc mryrbod in ttc ftnuctd 1lmcnr .t lh.

trmc rruxrdcd crh ir rocirtd l}tdng t pcmd udcr roior. [xrc *crr m diqrrlr.

Icqritiir cl?ryrcrb

llr r{Ircr rrtgnila rll pqmnts *hco lhc otrt trcrrr, md rtr nLfod crrh hu hcar Jrid ru

b'rtrtrin

L Corprlbolf,rpbl'lcr

Selancr nd rrllc\ .llo$urGrr. urd ltatutrr-r r.qrribulirns fir cmploco re ncognird in

lhr lrcrid whtn thc crn+tretion ir prid.

[. Ur olGoot md Srrvhrr

Godt ud scnlctr rrr nxognrad ri p.r rtr:otr in thc pcrirrd utcn thc aoods'*rvicer rr
Flrd l.r. llr olTm modc pl mmu fu tlr grx{r'rrriccs conrunrcd unqntint to

Kslr.596.lll,].13 dmnj thc pmul rnds rnisr.

Acqririlor .f fir.d Ar*tr l!i* Ihrccbll

fhc ;rrlmcn rn ln lrpiritirn of pmprr) plrll tnl nprpmcnt itcmr ir rrrt rtpitrlirrd, Ihc cort

of rryirhirm urd pun:caf, lirxn thc d$rral of drx irmr rt trcrd rs polmtrltr urd ncdprs

itcmr lcspctircll. Tlpc rn l*ra is xrtrlrnl in r n<n.crchrgc u***trm l'rr nl a mmorl

srtridrr iun nnd tlr frir v*kr of thc $td ';rl h. rrlhhll cuhlidrcd- ! crrtn tnrLrdrur ir
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rrl\llcd I tclai r lr F+mcnt. A fir'rJ rssa rgirttr ir rudttrutrd b.r thc (X'oll od a

rlrnm') ir pnr i&d t(r ttrForct ol c(IBrli&ion. Thit rucuarl ir drclccd 8 al lnn€xrltE kl

drc frnrncirl {rcrrcnts l.{ruxr : l.

l& Acqrbltor J Arcl} Flrdd (Drsrk kdla red O. Lc.dhtl)

tlr (X'rrB rtcrircrl Xrb,llrrt.l l, kr ld€t ftr rurf nxrr!ro! l'rltb. (hr u( thir. tht ollicc

Frirl crnplolor conuibuti{xrs b Fritqc Bcnclit tu (}B l I snnurlirU ro XrLa }!e0J9l und thl'

blsrct of l(L4l,rtrIrJ $a Itruf.nGd lo lh. fild lt!|rl!? ( I lootitt3 ]-innc! t'oryx'uict]

Ihir ir rcportod -prrtcl," rn x (XirB Steff MmSASc Rctrrt rrrl [inrncid Sucmcnt.

Crl rrd Crll E6lvrlntr

Cth ild <erh o$rirrlcnr <rmpir carh d hrtd sd clt I tlr Blrt. tlrn-tcrn dcFtxatt on

c.ll .rd htib liquil rnrcrtacrtr rrrh a cr3irJ rrrrary ol ttrcc o!di! a lcr. rtrh rc
rcnlily crnvcrihlc tr krxr*n ennrurg of rrrtr md sr suhial lo rn irrilnifrr ri* ol'chrt3cr

rn rrlrr. llrc officc Brat oounr rccutcot aad dcp6r bdrrccr rc hcld rr Ua Cmtrrl Brrlk of

K.an1r rhilc rll Sufi tltmgtc !k}*'!tr -,-courl n lEll rr tbrmg t-rarrr Curpruhxr (lltt't )

r dE srd olthc ihrrrrirl 1cr. A hfiI asout ttiilcr ir maildtr€d. trd a ltmlr] fnrid.d
f<r pr.cprcr ol'curolirledrn ( Amcr I )

kdcrlororCd

llcrtri.td r-erh rtFGtantr rrn rdrr rhr rn limitallalricta! lha bcrrg rld Lr Elllc a lbbihtl

t'(r ll lcd trrltG mnthr ricr thc rcprttl. Frriorl. Thir c8} ir linriEd f(r dittt't utc s rlquitlrl

tD tripularul

Amoonu radnrrirxd in dcf,Bh hanl ecrxrrr rt ]rsrrictcd frr usc in ltfudfutg thir+F.n]

&r rr. A! of 3Ol Jur 2013. rhis rrxuncd to Xrb +Il lJtt cornpccd to XtL. aTlrtl
in lh. p?ior pcdod rr itrdicacd (rn ftrr l0.l0. l}c (X'oll rnrdc e rrfod utl(xrltit{a ]o

l&lrlJlJt? lo ctchcqtEr ac(rrrr !t ] ricr collccrcd on pynrll crrnmisirrm
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lrpnordAftrrer

lor ttrr linnclrl llrtsruar impcrts ood rh lncrs to ruhriscd ptDlic offrcs ud,<r

inrtltuiun thu sflc not rrrtildrrrcd rr rrqrncd frra ttc md nith linrncrd 1ca rt trcrtul

r rcccrrablcs, Thb ir in rcqnrlim uf thr 3or cmaot prrtxc r hcr thc impreo pqrcnu rrt

rtogrrod u pqn ns rtx! firlrlt xcrurcd l'rr I th rrFrd fi AIE lnldcrr. fhr ir rn

srhncancrr b t --l rcqrd4, plic,v, Oitc scotrfi rtccitrblc rt dl*lsrrl rn tIr

flnocirl gcm<mr. Ttcrr ru m rrutstahg inrpot as I th clo. of dtc fi.tlrid 1tu urdcr

ttl's

IH;rrtrdl1afrrddrdl

Frr thcr tinrncirl raancrtr. dgxits d Nrcilians hcld oo bclull'ol'$ild lsrio baw bcct

rsopird on n srrrl bsir tr lcnonB psr tbksl lhls b in mqlitkn of thc jorcnn:nt

prrtict of nuidng . Frrifi of contrrlod lcrlrccr ud ufff! Fctd[g tlr hlfilmcn of

o0li3rtiru b1' thc crrnrc od to hold deporir m hcHt'ol' tlrid fsticr. fhir rr sr

sthrrcrncil to tlr coh m.ntirI ptky r&pud b'tiioml Go'cflrtrfl tllanisar rrt
Aprricr UIE hbllillo iuludiq pndq billrrr drlcrtl ln fi. linrd:id ctdmrrrtr.

n fu thc friof uds rclior' 0r offinditrt brlrrcc trf &b. aJCIJ!! in fic dcgosh

rcjc.rlrl oo rruom of !d pnier lnclu&l nrnb hclrl [n rucrgusuim h1' lnnrarrc for thr

los of equiprncrr'r md mcrlcrl ttllnrL

?.rdhBB

Fcndiq hlb crrc of rnp.n [rHlitie I ilr c,nd of llx fnmi.d 1cr ulrhg trrn cmwrod

gudr or xrr'ta ririr; tir 1ur rr in pot 1'cn Al pafrry tilb do rrr hrolvc thc plrrrl
of crrh h dr rpatinj ,crid lifi ut ncodcd rr 'mmorl{um' or 'r{T-hrbrc ir.nrr tr

pnrr irlr r rnrc of tk orcnll rrt caCr pritir of tt: tlnrtl rt tlr: rrrd ot thc yor, $tco th
pndiry tills ut llrull.r *nlrr( srh frlrrntt m irrlu&l in thr sufirrrt of Lotipr md

P4.mmtr in thr ltrr in r hir{r th' 6r) nxrr urc mdc. hring thc pmod urdcr rclrcs. 0rc 0( u0
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hd pnrlinX bilk of Xrlr. l.9lt Il. Ihil uotc drc to &la1s of &litcn oi grruds b1 th

l4plrr-

Brdpt

fhc hrtd ir dcteluFd rn l ctmFnHt rnrunltn; hrir (cl*h huir crr,rcpt lir rmpol rd

dcpolu n bich rrc rcorotcd tot ot n rcnrl boill th nuc xcqnt chsift rlin boir, ud

frr tie rrne peiod rr lh! fiturxi.l lltsrrnrr ltE aiSinrl hrlcl rl rpprval I Prlimnt

in hn lO2! tr lh. pcrod lx luly 1022 tn ld lrm Xl2J rr rupntd b1 taw. lluc $ltt tso

tl+plcorrilq .dJurDdr,r b il|8 mdtLl h{a rluia tlx }an. A t'ornFicoo olthc rtul
pcrfonnerrcc ryintt 0r(mpr$k htrl trr0E linrncnlycu rrrdrr rttlr hls b.m mlud
rn rhc lhlEid $urcttmls

Cotc?mant Dct'clqtmr Pn{ctttthdjstld ftrun&rh. MDArhlt nocire hr[scd llnlr

s trrulrr fl.l exour l.r 0ft rcprcly. Ib. ItEns&rt et rccqnircd.r irct'Gntio

rrdistt.

CorprrlvrF$lc

ffkr rncurr.r. rstgltrt? t[un:s fr dr poios lhucid lcr hrvc b,cco ancrdcd 6
ramligmd m confrrn m thc rquid chrgcr h pr-urtin-

Srlrrqrrt f,rrrt

ttrrt h*c bcnr rn *cns rficr th finmcirl ,cu<nd wifi r i3nilicrrl imlxt nn rlr tinlrid

rn(rtrnr fr rh fr endcd l# iunc l0ll.

ndld ?.rtl Dbdaru

Rclrd pul dirclrnnt ir crrctrrqcd utdct 6c fin-oudrt4 <rtim of hc ('arh Boil IPSAS

Ihc follmrrq rrmpira rtldct prtic !D lh ofi$!.
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fr1 oq:on poml 6r irldl n! Cdtt Sonrio md Acconiq

Ollicn

ftra Mlnldrr Defnmnr urd Ajrrb lrd Daalopca ft{cat
Cory&snm;d
stlr Ccpotdo rd Scmi-Aum Oovrnm Aprirt
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6.ts.100 :t.0:7,m

;:1{.il)latnrthrl e'illx,r

ItrllcEF/tlOtt

te i6d tnrlr!
ttn()l

,rlnrAkn

rrtnirtln !:uJ00

\Cfi (hilht!o{rra& f hrtat
=-_l

:rt,rm I

Ih OCoB rih tlrrlprrr ?rntl to pmirt r4prt fot cgity hrildrg m

Jruhlr lirrcc muryurrnt od pmdng uortahlrq il b0$ lfitb 0f gotflflncot,

lfriq th pcdod m& rwio. th (X oB Frtncnd riti thc lblhning qui.rtmns

th Oncrnrrc lu l.ndrhq linrc Dclrrq rnl ltrhh larctmsnt in Larlr

(O[SD*)pmgrn undfl dr PuHi( timncr Mur4rnmr Rcl'nm! (PfUR) Sccntrria,

F trrad 116 0(oB onl uaind ttu (qr4 Erauthr rnl Cunq ,trsalHl'ollicoi

fitrm ninc rqntio tn thr rnlo in tlE corl, gchapcr qpmr d pnrctr. ltr ('<unt1

(hrsrurrrs thrt *rc hrolroj irludrd, Kilill. Jindc. Lrna. \lonbur. Triu Trrco,

Tmrllvo. liilri, Mrh*ri, n( M*'lulrrr

IIr ffMR &r r4prttrt (X'oB in rh pntuc ot K T infrrrucrm qipnnrr nonh

KOl l.500.0q)

a

a
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tl (b{w.l pel:* aL tr lw Itu | ltan ol ryn

ttrofloddrrsr t.649.1m

k1Ullho(Aril r.rm.m

Arhdd..tr.rq*ra

I 7r0.m Uo.Er trnrdt;qiFr
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I h lbllurrrq rr tlrt Junmr'- oi ircus nird br th ntrrml lditor. ard mmrgcrncnr comnxnt!

I h.r rrrr prn ided ro ttr rditor

All Oc lsncl ffcrdtrcr$d to rt€ illrhcrm0l rht Auttto(ifird drrrytlrilldt pct(d,

rlm isrd uqulificd andt opinin m fic Finalrid Surcmcnu of rlr 0lllcc of rhc Cunrrolb

oitMgr
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,\nnexe 6: Reports (icnerated from I FNI lS

The following financial Reports Generated from IFMIS should be generated and attached as appendices to

these financial statements.

i. GOK IFMIS Comparison Trial Balance.

ii. FO30 (Bank reconciliations) for all bank accounts.

iii. GOK IFMIS Receipts and Payments Statement.

iv. GOK IFMIS Statement of Financial Position.

v. GOK IFMIS Statement of Cash Flows.

vi. GOK IFMIS Notes to the Financial Statements.

vii. GOK IFMIS Statement of Budget Execution.

viii. GOK IFMIS Statement of Deposits.

ix. GOK IFMIS Budget Execution by Programme and Economic Classification

x. GOK IFMIS Budget Execution by Heads and Programmes.

xi. GOK IFMIS Budget Execution by Programmes and Sub-programmes.
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